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 1        BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
  

 2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
  

 3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
  

 4   Committee, commencing at 10:01 a.m. on December 29, 2025,
  

 5   with all participants appearing via videoconference.
  

 6
  

 7   BEFORE:  Adam Stafford, Chairman
  

 8
  

 9   APPEARANCES:
  

10   For the Applicant:
  

11       Meghan H. Grabel
       Tim Sabo

12       Elias Ancharski
       OSBORN MALEDON

13       2929 North Central Avenue
       21st Floor

14       Phoenix, Arizona  85012
  

15   For TEP:
  

16       Megan Hill
       Tucson Electric Power Company

17       88 East Broadway, MS HQE910
       P.O. Box 711

18       Tucson, Arizona  85702
  

19   For Windmill Ridge Development, LLC:
  

20       Todd Jackson
       Jean Roof

21       1670 East River Road
       Suite 260

22       Tucson, Arizona 85718
  

23
  

24
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 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Let's go on the record.
  

 2                 Now is the time set for the prehearing
  

 3   conference in Docket Number L-00000AAA-16-0370-00173,
  

 4   Line Siting Case 173.
  

 5                 Let's start with appearances starting with
  

 6   the party -- the applicant.
  

 7                 MS. GRABEL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  

 8   Meghan Grabel from Osborn Maledon on behalf of Southline
  

 9   Transmission, LLC.
  

10                 With me from my office are Elias Ancharski
  

11   and Tim Sabo.  And with me from Southline are Doug
  

12   Patterson, Isaac Phillips, Cara Bellavia, and Colin Agner
  

13   from SWCA.
  

14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  We have Megan
  

15   Hill.  Are you representing TEP?
  

16                 MS. HILL:  That's correct, Mr. Chairman.
  

17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And TEP is already a
  

18   party.  They were a party to the case when it was amended
  

19   by the Commission previously?
  

20                 MS. HILL:  That's correct.
  

21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And then we have
  

22   Windmill Ridge Development, LLC.  Mr. Jackson.
  

23                 MR. JACKSON:  Yes.  Good morning,
  

24   Mr. Chair.  Todd Jackson from Jackson & Roof.  I also
  

25   have Jean Roof from my office here with me.  Good
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 1   morning.
  

 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So you're
  

 3   looking to substitute in for a prior party.  So that
  

 4   would be under (A)(4).  That'll have to be decided by the
  

 5   committee.  Typically how we do it is we'll start the
  

 6   hearing, the committee will vote to grant party status,
  

 7   or not, to potential parties.
  

 8                 MR. JACKSON:  Okay.
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Ms. Grabel,
  

10   just to confirm, you've got the lodging for the committee
  

11   members for the hearing?
  

12                 MS. GRABEL:  Correct.  Yes.  It will be the
  

13   DoubleTree by Hilton Tucson Reid Park.  Same place we're
  

14   having the hearing.
  

15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Does everybody agree
  

16   that May 20, 2026, is the time limit for the committee to
  

17   act in compliance with the statute?
  

18                 MS. GRABEL:  Yes.
  

19                 MR. JACKSON:  Yes from us.  This is Todd.
  

20                 MS. HILL:  Yes from TEP.
  

21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And the applicant's
  

22   complied with the notice to affected jurisdictions as
  

23   required by the procedural order?
  

24                 MS. GRABEL:  Yes, we have, Mr. Chairman.
  

25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And you've got -- so I've
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 1   got Pima and Cochise Counties, Arizona State Land
  

 2   Department, and Benson and Tucson.
  

 3                 MS. GRABEL:  That is correct.  And we have
  

 4   filed as Prehearing Exhibit 2 the notices that we sent to
  

 5   those five affected jurisdictions.
  

 6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  That's an excellent segue.
  

 7   You have six prehearing exhibits.  Would you like to talk
  

 8   us through those, please?
  

 9                 MS. GRABEL:  Certainly.
  

10                 Our Prehearing Exhibit 1 is a map of the
  

11   proposed project.  In this case, that's the segment for
  

12   which we are seeking a CEC, part of the larger Southline
  

13   project.
  

14                 2 is the notice to affected jurisdictions
  

15   that I just mentioned.
  

16                 3 is an example of the content of the
  

17   signage that we posted in 16 locations.
  

18                 Prehearing Exhibit 4 is a map of the sign
  

19   locations where they were actually posted.
  

20                 Prehearing Exhibit 5 is our proposed tour
  

21   itinerary if the committee votes to take a tour in this
  

22   matter.
  

23                 And Prehearing Exhibit 6 is our proposed
  

24   CEC, which in this case we modeled it after what we
  

25   did -- what was done, rather, for the Vail to Tortolita
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 1   proceeding where it is a proposed order that amends the
  

 2   prior CEC, and then a redline of the CEC that reflects
  

 3   those proposed changes, and then a clean version of the
  

 4   CEC with those changes accepted.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Thank you.
  

 6                 Those are admitted.
  

 7                 (Prehearing Exhibits 1 through 6 were
  

 8   admitted.)
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And the applicants complied
  

10   with the posting and publishing requirements in the
  

11   procedural order and the statute?
  

12                 MS. GRABEL:  We have, yes.
  

13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So you got it published in
  

14   the Herald Review and the Daily Territorial and the
  

15   Arizona Bilingual?
  

16                 MS. GRABEL:  Correct.  And the Arizona
  

17   Business Gazette as well on December 6.
  

18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And what was the date of
  

19   the second publications -- what were the publication
  

20   dates?  You had Daily Territorial was November 25 and
  

21   November 28?
  

22                 MS. GRABEL:  The 26th, Mr. Chairman, and
  

23   28th, correct.
  

24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And then for the Herald
  

25   Review?
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 1                 MS. GRABEL:  We did November 30 and then
  

 2   December 7.
  

 3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  

 4                 MS. GRABEL:  And the Arizona Business
  

 5   Gazette we did on December 6.
  

 6                 And, again, the Arizona Bilingual, we just
  

 7   published in December as a courtesy.
  

 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So we've got
  

 9   two publishing dates at least -- more than 30 days before
  

10   the hearing date; correct?
  

11                 MS. GRABEL:  That is correct.
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  All right.
  

13                 Now, the parties have had a chance to see
  

14   the agenda?
  

15                 MS. GRABEL:  Southline has, yes, sir.
  

16                 MR. JACKSON:  Mr. Chairman --
  

17                 MS. HILL:  Yes.
  

18                 MR. JACKSON:  Sorry.  I muted.  I have for
  

19   the -- for the line siting committee hearing.  Is there a
  

20   separate one for today?  If so, I missed that.
  

21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  No, no, there's just the
  

22   one agenda.  I'm just -- if anyone has any objections or
  

23   additions, speak now or forever hold your peace.
  

24                 MR. JACKSON:  Understood.  No, none from
  

25   us, Your Honor.

      GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC      602.266.6535
      www.glennie-reporting.com             Phoenix, AZ



LS CASE NO. 173      PREHEARING CONFERENCE      12/29/2025 10

  

 1                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Mr. Ancharski?
  

 2                 MR. ANCHARSKI:  Yes, Chairman.  Sorry to
  

 3   interrupt.  I just received a message from Commission
  

 4   Staff.  I believe it was Sean Bodkin.  He is having
  

 5   trouble signing on.  So I guess -- I assume it's his
  

 6   intent to join.  But I just wanted to let you know -- I
  

 7   did send him the link and everything.  But, yeah, I'm not
  

 8   sure what the issue is on is on their end.
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Tod, is he trying to get
  

10   into the meeting?
  

11                 (No audible response.)
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Tod, do you see him in the
  

13   waiting room?
  

14                 (No audible response.)
  

15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So, Ms. Grabel,
  

16   the hearing is set for --
  

17                 MS. GRABEL:  The hearing is set for
  

18   January 12 beginning at one p.m. and continuing that week
  

19   as needed.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  How many days
  

21   do you anticipate it will last?
  

22                 MS. GRABEL:  I suppose it depends on the
  

23   scope of the intervention.  Prior to the Windmill Ridge
  

24   intervention, I had anticipated that we'd be finished by
  

25   Wednesday, assuming that we take a tour on Tuesday.  The
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 1   tour on Tuesday will likely take all day if the -- six
  

 2   and a half to seven hours if the committee votes to have
  

 3   it.
  

 4                 And Windmill Ridge's intervention, that
  

 5   could go through Thursday, potentially Friday, again,
  

 6   depending how many questions Mr. Jackson intends to ask
  

 7   of his witnesses as well as mine.
  

 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So you'll have
  

 9   the sign-in forms for public comment which we'll do on
  

10   Monday evening.
  

11                 Do you anticipate much public comment?
  

12                 MS. GRABEL:  We anticipate some but not
  

13   necessarily extensive public comment.
  

14                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Do you think -- is
  

15   there a need for security for the hearing, do you think,
  

16   or --
  

17                 MS. GRABEL:  I do not think so, no,
  

18   Mr. Chairman.
  

19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  So we'll do --
  

20   you'll do a virtual tour, I'm assuming; correct?
  

21                 MS. GRABEL:  Yes, we will do a virtual
  

22   tour.
  

23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  You said that -- I looked
  

24   at the agenda for the route tour, and it looks like it's
  

25   about seven hours?
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 1                 MS. GRABEL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  That's
  

 2   because the distance to drive from the hotel to the site
  

 3   as well as going through the project and then back.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  You'll have Peaks
  

 5   Audio for the --
  

 6                 MS. GRABEL:  We will.
  

 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  -- for the hearing?  Okay.
  

 8   Excellent.
  

 9                 Attire for the hearing is business casual.
  

10                 Now, the parties and potential parties
  

11   exchanged witness summaries and testimony.
  

12                 I see that the applicant's got five
  

13   witnesses and about 31 exhibits.
  

14                 MS. GRABEL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  We filed
  

15   those in the docket prior to the holidays.
  

16                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And does TEP have any
  

17   witnesses or exhibits?  I didn't see any of those.
  

18                 MS. HILL:  At this point we do not plan on
  

19   putting on any witnesses or introducing any exhibits, no.
  

20                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And, Mr. Jackson,
  

21   you have two witnesses and four exhibits?
  

22                 MR. JACKSON:  Correct, Mr. Chair.  We --
  

23   I'm not regularly before you.  In the past I've been able
  

24   and parties have presented witnesses as a panel.  My
  

25   preference would be to just call our two folks at once.
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 1                 Our issues are very discrete in this
  

 2   matter.  I don't expect that their direct testimony would
  

 3   take more than a half an hour.  It's pretty discrete
  

 4   issues.  And if it's acceptable to the chair and
  

 5   committee, my preference would be that we not attend the
  

 6   entirety of the hearing but rather just the portion
  

 7   that's focused on these two or three issues that we would
  

 8   like to address if we're unable to resolve them.
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Ms. Grabel, you're putting
  

10   all your witnesses as one panel or multiple panels?
  

11                 MS. GRABEL:  Multiple panels, Mr. Chair.
  

12   We anticipate three.  The first will describe the
  

13   project.  The second will describe the environmental
  

14   attributes of the project.  And the third discuss public
  

15   outreach.
  

16                 We'll probably end up addressing
  

17   Mr. Jackson's client's issues when we talk about the
  

18   project, but that's something I still need to talk to my
  

19   team about.
  

20                 And just as an aside, we have been working
  

21   with Windmill Ridge on a potential agreement that we hope
  

22   will resolve some of these issues.  It's my hope that we
  

23   get that resolved prior to the hearing.  But I think
  

24   Mr. Jackson intervened just --
  

25                 THE COURT REPORTER:  I'm sorry.
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 1   Ms. Grabel, you broke up just at the very end.  Can you
  

 2   repeat your last sentence or so?
  

 3                 MS. GRABEL:  I think I said Mr. Jackson
  

 4   intervened out of caution which makes sense.
  

 5                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Thank you.
  

 6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And you have --
  

 7   TEP and Southline, you have the exhibits from
  

 8   Mr. Jackson?
  

 9                 MS. GRABEL:  Yes.
  

10                 MS. HILL:  Yes, we do, Your Honor --
  

11   Mr. Chair.
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  So everybody's complied
  

13   with the procedural order.
  

14                 Are there any other legal issues or matters
  

15   we need to resolve at this conference?
  

16                 Mr. Ancharski?
  

17                 MR. ANCHARSKI:  I apologize for the
  

18   interruption again.  Sean said that he's waiting to be
  

19   let in.  I don't have authority to let him in.  So I'm
  

20   not entirely sure what's happening on that side.
  

21                 CHMN STAFFORD:  That would be Tod.  We need
  

22   Tod to let him in.
  

23                 MR. ANCHARSKI:  I did add Tod to that
  

24   e-mail chain just a second ago.
  

25                 MS. GRABEL:  While we're waiting,
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 1   Mr. Chairman, Southline does have one other issue we'd
  

 2   like to bring up.
  

 3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Please.
  

 4                 MS. GRABEL:  And that concerns Member Fant.
  

 5   I don't know if he intends to participate in this
  

 6   proceeding.  Has he indicated that he does?  I haven't
  

 7   seen a recusal.
  

 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And what would
  

 9   necessitate his recusal?
  

10                 MS. GRABEL:  So Member Fant has an interest
  

11   in RioSol.  I think he actually recused himself from the
  

12   latest RioSol matter on that basis.  And RioSol is in
  

13   direct competition with the Southline project and has
  

14   opposed it in the past.  Mr. Patterson has more
  

15   information on that if you have additional questions.
  

16   But we think there might be a conflict of interest.
  

17   Obviously, we believe Member Fant can independently
  

18   assess whether he believes there's a conflict, but we did
  

19   want to flag it.  And if we need to move to recuse, we'd
  

20   be able -- we're prepared to do that.  But I didn't know
  

21   whether he intended to participate initially, so I'd
  

22   thought I'd raise it here.
  

23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Thank you for
  

24   bringing it to my attention.  I will find out from Member
  

25   Fant.
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 1                 MS. GRABEL:  Thank you.
  

 2                 MR. JACKSON:  Mr. Chair, if you have a
  

 3   minute.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yes, Mr. Jackson.
  

 5                 (Sean Bodkin joined the conference.)
  

 6                 MR. JACKSON:  This may not be possible, but
  

 7   is there any means by which we might be able to determine
  

 8   when our folks would be needed for the hearing just in
  

 9   terms of scheduling?  Or is that something that would
  

10   have to be sorted out at the first -- at the -- when the
  

11   hearing is called at the outset?
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Well, how we'll start is
  

13   the committee will vote on your application to intervene.
  

14   And then the -- how the case will proceed is the
  

15   applicant will give an opening statement, the other
  

16   parties will be allowed to give an opening statement, and
  

17   then the applicant will proceed with its presentation of
  

18   its direct case.  And then when they conclude the first
  

19   panel, other parties will be able to cross-examine them.
  

20   And then once the applicant concludes its direct case,
  

21   then the other parties will be allowed to present their
  

22   direct cases.
  

23                 So for -- I imagine that Ms. Grabel's
  

24   witnesses will be on the stand for -- and assuming we
  

25   don't do a tour, I assume that they could probably get
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 1   through their direct case by Tuesday afternoon.
  

 2                 Ms. Grabel?
  

 3                 MS. GRABEL:  I think that's fair.  Yes,
  

 4   Mr. Chairman.
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  So then we could --
  

 6   if we don't do a tour, then I guess we could plan on you
  

 7   putting on your direct case Wednesday morning.  Because
  

 8   TEP's not going to present any direct case.
  

 9                 MR. JACKSON:  Understood.  We'll be
  

10   flexible.  I'll make sure my witnesses know that.  But
  

11   that's helpful.  Thank you.
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I mean, there's a chance
  

13   you could get them on the stand Tuesday, but I guess if
  

14   they're -- we'll have a better idea at the end of the day
  

15   on Monday before we start the public comment because
  

16   that's when the committee will decide whether or not
  

17   we're going to do a physical tour, which will drastically
  

18   shape the scope -- the length and the direction of the
  

19   hearing.
  

20                 So we'll see what the will of the committee
  

21   is.  I'm inclined not to do a tour given the duration of
  

22   it and the fact that this route has already been sited.
  

23                 And I'm going to ask Ms. Grabel if the
  

24   committee on the initial granting of the certificate took
  

25   a tour.
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 1                 MS. GRABEL:  I know that they took a tour
  

 2   of the Southline project.  I do not believe they took a
  

 3   tour of this segment because it wasn't a part of the CEC
  

 4   request.  That's why we're asking for a CEC now.  But,
  

 5   yes, a tour was conducted during the first proceeding.
  

 6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And then this
  

 7   portion we're talking about that's relevant for this
  

 8   particular hearing is the -- it's -- what's there now is
  

 9   an existing WAPA line; is that correct?
  

10                 MS. GRABEL:  That's correct.
  

11                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.
  

12                 MS. GRABEL:  Not part of the CEC in the
  

13   first instance because WAPA was going to build and own
  

14   it.  And a condition of the CEC, which we're now asking
  

15   to be deleted, is that if WAPA is no longer the sole
  

16   owner or is not when constructed, that we need to get a
  

17   CEC for it.  So we're back.
  

18                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Now, you've
  

19   made arrangements with the -- financial arrangements with
  

20   the Commission?
  

21                 MS. GRABEL:  Yes, Mr. Chairman, we have.
  

22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  And I have not seen
  

23   Staff file anything with their position on it other the
  

24   order remanding the matter to the committee.
  

25                 MS. GRABEL:  Staff did file a Staff report
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 1   supporting our requested amendments including the remand,
  

 2   but you're correct, Mr. Chairman, there's been nothing
  

 3   since then.
  

 4                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Now, is there any
  

 5   litigation related to this project that's pending?
  

 6                 MS. GRABEL:  No, Mr. Chairman.
  

 7                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  You've got -- and
  

 8   I've got your proposed CEC.
  

 9                 And I've got some proposed conditions from
  

10   Mr. Jackson.
  

11                 Now, for -- I believe for the permit status
  

12   of the project, there's just the Bureau of Land
  

13   Management has a right-of-way amendment pending?
  

14                 MS. GRABEL:  Yes.  We have a BLM
  

15   right-of-way grant amendment in process.  We also have an
  

16   ASLD right-of-way amendment in progress -- not amendment,
  

17   but an ASLD right-of-way in progress.  And an Arizona
  

18   Department of Transportation encroachment permit.
  

19                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And there's
  

20   no -- is there a NEPA process for this?
  

21                 MS. GRABEL:  There was a NEPA process that
  

22   was conducted at the initial iteration of this project
  

23   that this project has gone through.  So, yes, but it's
  

24   completed.  It's been completed for some time.
  

25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  That was like in
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 1   2018 or something?
  

 2                 MS. GRABEL:  I think earlier than that.
  

 3                 Mr. Patterson, can you confirm?
  

 4                 MR. PATTERSON:  In 2016, I believe --
  

 5                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  Excellent.
  

 6                 Now, for all the exhibits, you're going to
  

 7   have the tablets for the committee members?
  

 8                 MS. GRABEL:  We will, yes.
  

 9                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Will you be able to load
  

10   Mr. Jackson's, his exhibits on there as well?
  

11                 MS. GRABEL:  We can do that.  Yes,
  

12   Mr. Chair.
  

13                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  So you'll need
  

14   to bring two hard copies of the exhibits, one for me and
  

15   one for the court reporter.  And the court reporter's
  

16   should be just bound, not in a binder, but just -- not in
  

17   a notebook but just in a stack with different color paper
  

18   differentiating the exhibits and just in a rubber band.
  

19   They don't need it hole punched.  For ease of the
  

20   reporter.
  

21                 MS. GRABEL:  Okay.
  

22                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And then for mine, I'll
  

23   take mine in a binder.
  

24                 MS. GRABEL:  Okay.
  

25                 CHMN STAFFORD:  All right.  And that's the
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 1   same for you, Mr. Jackson.  You'll need to bring two hard
  

 2   copies of your exhibits.  Looks like yours are just --
  

 3   you probably don't need a binder for it.  You could
  

 4   probably just attach them all with a stapler or
  

 5   something.  It looks like there was four to six pages of
  

 6   exhibits for yours.
  

 7                 MR. JACKSON:  Okay.
  

 8                 CHMN STAFFORD:  And then you'll have --
  

 9   you'll need an electronic copy, so get with the applicant
  

10   so you can have the A/V team load them on a tablet so
  

11   they'll be visible to all the committee members during
  

12   the hearing.
  

13                 MR. JACKSON:  And, I'm sorry, who do I
  

14   coordinate that with?  Ms. Grabel or --
  

15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Yes.
  

16                 MR. JACKSON:  Okay.  Got it.
  

17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  I think you've sent an
  

18   e-mail out with those.
  

19                 You probably already have those,
  

20   Ms. Grabel, so you can just forward that on to Peaks
  

21   Audio and have them load them on the tablets.
  

22                 MS. GRABEL:  We can do that.
  

23                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Have you gotten the Zoom
  

24   link for the members to attend remotely?  Have you gotten
  

25   that to Tod already?
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 1                 MS. GRABEL:  I have not received that from
  

 2   Peaks, but we will get it and forward it along.
  

 3                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  The sooner -- the
  

 4   sooner, the better.
  

 5                 MS. GRABEL:  We'll reach out to them today.
  

 6                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Okay.  Are there any other
  

 7   issues we need to cover?
  

 8                 Ms. Grabel.
  

 9                 MS. GRABEL:  No, sir.
  

10                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Ms. Hill.
  

11                 MS. HILL:  I'm sorry.
  

12                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Is there anything else we
  

13   need to cover?
  

14                 MS. HILL:  No, sir.
  

15                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Mr. Jackson.
  

16                 MR. JACKSON:  No, sir.  Thank you.
  

17                 CHMN STAFFORD:  That's everything on my
  

18   end.
  

19                 Do you have everything you need, Jennifer?
  

20                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Can I verify that
  

21   "iPhone" is Sean Bodkin?
  

22                 MR. BODKIN:  Yes, that's me.  Thank you.
  

23                 THE COURT REPORTER:  Thank you.
  

24                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  All right, Tod,
  

25   is there anything else we need?
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 1                 MR. BREWER:  No, Mr. Chairman.  Thank you.
  

 2                 CHMN STAFFORD:  Excellent.  I will see you
  

 3   all on January 12.  With that, we are adjourned.
  

 4                 (Proceedings concluded at 10:23 a.m.)
  

 5
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 1   STATE OF ARIZONA       )
                          )

 2   COUNTY OF MARICOPA     )
  

 3        BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,

 4   true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings

 5   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
   to print under my direction.

 6
        I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of the

 7   parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
   outcome hereof.

 8
        I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical

 9   obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and
   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).

10
        Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, December 29, 2025.

11
  

12
  

13
  

14              ___________________________________
                       JENNIFER HONN, RPR

15                   Arizona Certified Reporter
                           No. 50885

16
  

17
  

18        I CERTIFY that GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC, has
   complied with the ethical obligations set forth in

19   ACJA 7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
  

20
  

21
  

22
  

23               __________________________________
                GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC

24                    Arizona Registered Firm
                           No. R1035

25
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